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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (gavel). . . Good afternoon, Members. I want to welcome
you to our Planning Committee meeting this afternoon. We have a quorum present, and I
may begin by the introduction of our Committee Members. We have Vice-Chair Jo Anne
Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We have Member Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hello.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha. We have Member Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Member Wayne Nishiki. We have Member Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Aloha. And then we have a non-voting Member in attendance,
thank you, Mr. Joe Pontanilla. Excused today is Member Michael Molina. We have also
with us Corporation Counsel, Michael Hopper, Deputy Corporation Counsel, with us; and
from the Planning Department we have Jeff Hunt, our Planning Director.
MR. HUNT: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha. And we have Joseph Alueta, Administrative Planning
Officer, Department of Planning.
MR. ALUETA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha. And, let's see, and today staffing our meeting is our
Legislative Attorney, David Raatz, to my left, and our Committee Secretary Clarita
Balala. Okay. Members, let me start by saying that we will begin with public testimony,
and we'll start in a few minutes. And those wishing to testify if you have not yet signed
up to testify please do so by seeing our Committee Secretary here. Testimony will be
limited to three minutes and testifiers are requested to state their name, and the...and for
the record, and to indicate who they're representing today. And, if I may, I'd like to ask
all of you, including myself, to turn off any of your phones or noisemaking devices
before we begin.
Okay. Members, I want to introduce our agenda items today. We're beginning with
PC-6, which is our Interim Zoning bill; then we have PC-43, which is our Rural Zoning
Districts; and, PC-7, which is the Off-Street Parking and Loading Ordinance. If I may
begin by starting with our PC-6. First of all, it is, it is the Interim Zoning item. Before
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the Committee is proposed bill... is a proposed bill submitted by the Planning Director to
repeal the existing Interim Zoning Chapter and establish a new zoning chapter in Title 19
of the Maui County Code. The Planning Commissions have recommended approval of
this legislation and as the Members will recall the Committee began its review on the bill
on March 2 nd .
Before I ask the Planning Director to refresh our memories about the basis for this bill, I
would like to now accept public testimony on this. So, we will take public testimony on
this item and if you are testifying also on the two other remaining items that are on our
agenda, and you can't wait for those items, I would allow you to testify ahead of time.
So we're going to begin with PC-6. So without any objections, Committee Members, I'd
like to accept public testimony on PC-6, and in addition, we'll accept any other testimony
for PC-43 and PC-7, if those who are here can't wait for those items to be called. So any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then let's begin with our public testimony. I have
Mr. David DeLeon. Would you come forward and...

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. DELEON: Aloha and good afternoon. My name is Dave DeLeon. I'm speaking for
Maui's 1,400 licensed realtors as the Government Affairs Director of the REALTORS®
Association of Maui. I wish, well, I'm here to actually speak on all three, but I'll try to,
Mr. Chairman, try to wait and see. If it runs on, then I might give the following
testimony on, on the two items the second time around.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If you would like to...
MR. DELEON: It depends on how it runs.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. DELEON: On PC-6, RAM supports the intent of this measure and, in particular, supports
the provision that allows bed and breakfasts for the bed and breakfast use in the Interim
zone. Five of the applicants under the new Chapter 19.64 of the County Code, that are
currently in the process of applying, are in, in the Interim district.
A couple of years ago, a Molokai resident, an applicant for a B&B license completed the
full process, including obtaining the approval of the Molokai Planning Commission.
After months of arduous work and effort, that applicant appeared at the Planning
Department to obtain her hard-won permit only to be told that there was a mistake.
B&Bs are not a permitted use in the, in the Interim zone and her house was in the Interim
zone. RAM believes if you're attempting to do this type of business on Molokai, and the
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community supports your business proposal, then you deserve a medal for the courage,
for an optimism, and not more additional roadblocks and, and bureaucratic red tape. I am
asking you to please pass this provision.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, are there any questions for the
testifier? Okay. Seeing none.
Is there anyone else here who would like to testify that hasn't signed up for this particular
item PC-6? Okay. Seeing none, then the Chair would recommend that we close public
testimony if there's no objections by the Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
ITEM NO. 6: INTERIM ZONING (c.c. No. 09-66)
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then let us continue then with this item, and I'm going
to now call on our Planning Director for an overview and an update on where we left off
on this item.
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Again, the Planning Committee reviewed this last on
March 2 nd of this year. As a little bit of background, again, the, the bill is not intended as
an overhaul of the Interim District. It's merely a slight revision to the Interim District.
Mostly, the catalyst was that right now there are no building standards or housing
standards within the Interim District. So there's no setbacks, maximum height, et cetera,
and the County relies on the Housing or the Building Code which has housing standards
to implement those regulations.
So the Department, in learning that the housing standards were intended to be deleted
from the Building Code, has proposed that we insert housing standards within the Interim
District. That's the, that's the major intent of this bill. As long as we have the Interim
District open we thought we'd add a provision for bed and breakfast, because this was
discussed during the hearings on the B&B bill which was recently adopted.
Additionally, we are suggesting, and this is a verbal update, and there should be a
handout in front of you, we are suggesting that you add a provision for public/quasipublic buildings in the Interim District. And this would allow for such uses in the Interim
District. We think it's consistent with the other uses that are provided. Specifically to be
upfront, it's intended to allow for the Molokai Veterans Center which is on Interim-zoned
land.
So, again, that, that's kind of the, the update. We don't really want to overhaul the, the
Interim bill. It is ironic that the Interim bill is celebrating its 50th anniversary this year.
The Planning Department's intent is during the Community Plan updates, each
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Community Plan will have a map associated with that Community Plan and that map will
have community plan designations. We will propose that we simultaneously designate
zoning and adopt that along with the community plans so that there's consistency
between the community plans and the zoning. At that time, we should be able to
eliminate, or through that process we should be able to eliminate Interim zoning
throughout the County. So that's kind of the long-term answer. And Joe Alueta is here
to answer any questions and details about the bill, but other than that, Chair, we're, we're
open.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Director. Chair wants to also just note, for
the record, that we do have written testimony that was sent in for PC-6. So it should be
before you. Members, are there... go ahead, Director.
MR. HUNT: Joe Alueta wanted to add just a few comments.
MR. ALUETA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. At your last meeting, we had a very short window,
about a half an hour, to discuss the items. One of the key issues that I think that they
wanted to see was a Ramseyer version, I believe I heard from one of the Members. They
were not comfortable with...they wanted to see what the existing law is, and what's
being stricken, and put in, and that should have been passed out to you also today to try to
simplify it. They also wanted to see a map, which is very difficult to produce, but we did
produce a map. Some of you did see it at the last meeting. So we do have a copy of it up
here to show where the Interim-zoned lands are.
I just will caution you that in August 1, 1958, that's when the Interim bill was adopted,
and the Council, at that time, or whatever the body was called at that time, basically
adopted Interim and zoned everything in the County of Maui or everything on the Island
of Maui as Interim, okay, until such time as this State and the County adopted zoning
maps, okay. So what that means is that you may, this map when you looked at it, when
you saw it, a lot of it showed Interim, but that has to do because we have a large chunk of
land in Conservation. So even though it's zoned County Interim it's really under the
control of the State as Conservation. It's just that we pre-dated the State in many areas,
just to be, just so there's no, no one freaks out when they see all this Interim land that's
out there. A lot of it has to do with Conservation lands.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you for that information. Members, are there any
questions that you have for the Department? Go ahead, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. My first question is you did
indicate that there was some written testimony submitted. I just wanted to know how
many because, so I can be sure I have it all.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: There's, on this item, on PC-6 there was one.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just one.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We had another written testimony on the PC-43. So you
should have had two, and then Mr. DeLeon passed out his testimony as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I have that. Okay. Thank you for that clarification. I
wanted to ask the Department on your handout, the one that says the construction of new
or expansion existing parks and so forth, it says tower structures in support of a utility.
So in the existing section of the Code, does it express the height limit on these towers?
MR. ALUETA: Under the existing law, no. If you recall several years ago, the Rice Camp
incident, you had an Interim small 3...4,000 square foot lot in Rice Camp. They put up a
199 foot cell, cell tower, and because there was no height restriction within the Interim
District you can pretty much do what you wanted. The provisions that we're proposing
would eliminate that, as well as create other standards that would be potentially
eliminated from, by the Housing Code. Currently, the Housing Code regulates setback,
but I don't believe it dealt with height. So this is one of the things that we need to deal
with and that's why we're adding height not only for towers, but also for single-family
residence that's consistent with the Residential District.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So your handout just stipulates tower structures in
support of a utility. So the height limitations are in your other handout? You, you gave
us two handouts. One is this very thin one -MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --that says towers structures in support of a utility. It says
nothing more than that. So I'm asking you...
MR. ALUETA: Oh, I'm sorry. If you look at the, the Code that's, the proposal that's in your
binder today that has the actual bill that you're dealing with, the thick one or the, it's
about seven page worth. It's a Ramseyer version. And I will just let you know that so
that Corp. Counsel can waive off all knowledge of this, he has not reviewed this
Ramseyer version that I did, so this was done by the Department and this basically takes
existing 19.02 and tries to use a Ramseyer format. Because of all the changes, and in
discussion with Corp. Counsel, it was best to repeal the existing 19.02 and just create a
whole 19.02A, because it's much cleaner and be easier to read because of the changes.
So if you look at the changes that are being proposed by the Department, besides adding
standards for the Residential District standards to limit heights of towers and some
updates, one of the key things that we're doing is using a table format. If you look at the
existing Code it's a lot of word math problems, and I'm pretty good at math, but I never
really liked that Train A leaving Chicago, you know, into a six-mile headwind traveling
43 miles an hour; Train B leaving DC going west. So I, this tries to make it a lot simpler
to read by using table formats.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: And so, a lot of the verbiage, if you actually went through and read the
verbiage, all I did was take that verbiage and put it into a table format. Okay. I did not
create any new things.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So according to your table the maximum building/tower
height is 50 feet. So that's the existing height that we're maintaining. And that's
number, Page 3 of your multi-page handout.
MR. ALUETA: That... yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So that's it, 50 feet?
MR. ALUETA: That is for the, yeah, under...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Under tower structures in support of a utility.
MR. ALUETA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson, question?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Joe, have you or has Corporation Counsel had an opportunity,
with regard to the bed and breakfast issue, to review the verbiage that's in here and the
items that you have in the matrix, you know, or your tables, and then proofed it as to
consistency with our bed and breakfast bill?
MR. ALUETA: Yes. This has been reviewed by Corporation Counsel and all this does is make
reference that bed and breakfasts are allowed within the Interim District, okay, within,
under, under single-family. So what that means is that it would be subject to the
restrictions of 19.64. So all it does is by reference say bed and breakfasts are allowed,
and then the standards in which those, to comply with, such as notification requirements
and all of that will be within 19.64.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And, for example, I think it's on Page 3 of our handout, the
minimum lot area 20,000 square feet, minimum lot width 100 feet, maximum building
height 30 feet, and yard setback. Those particular items are they only in reference to the
hospitals or sanitariums or, and, and the other, you know, where it says day care
nurseries, museums, churches, libraries, kindergartens, elementary schools, intermediate
schools, high schools, universities, publicly owned buildings, and public utility uses, is
that only in reference to that area?
MR. ALUETA: That is correct.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Okay. You know, my, my only concern, Mr. Chair, is that
whatever we're doing here I don't want to confuse the issue or create a gray area with
regard to the bed and breakfast issue that clouds that for either the Administration or the
applicants. And if we're very clear, then I don't have a problem.
One of the other questions I have, and on the first page, under 19.02.030, where it's A(1),
usually the verbiage is single-family dwellings. Why does it say one-family dwellings?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Director.
MR. ALUETA: The Interim ordinance was written in 1958, and then the Title 19.04 was written
in 1960, so when the term, the use of single-family, I believe "single-family residence"
came around.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Well, I guess my question and my reason for asking that is if we're
updating it to be consistent with current language that we're using so we're all on the
same page. If Corp. Counsel could address that, I'd really appreciate it.
MR. ALUETA: Well, if you look at the, the bill that you are actually reviewing and not the
Ramseyer version. you'll see that Corp. Counsel, in their wisdom, made that correction.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, they did. Okay. All right.
MR. HOPPER: The Ramseyer format is good to see what changes were made. The, the version
we transmitted to you is actually going to be the bill we sign off on -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HOPPER: --and work from, and it does say one single-family dwelling in that, in that
section there. So, so that, at least, has been corrected. Joe's right. This was very
difficult to take from the 1958 ordinance. He did a tremendous job, and then I helped
him with it, but it was hard to put into a table form these very long sentences. So that
was one thing that we did, we did get, but obviously, if you see anything else please let us
know because there was a lot.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No. I just want to thank you, because it is a much easier read, and
it's, you know, it's there so that people can make an analysis of it. And I really do
appreciate that you did put it in this type of format, because I think it takes away a lot of
the, I guess, category of subject to interpretation, at least for me. So I do appreciate it and
that's all I have for right now, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, thank you very much. I would like to thank the
Planning Department for coming forward with this bill. During the review and the work
we did on the B&B Ordinance, the issue of Interim zoning came up, and we were
promised at that time not to worry about it because the Planning Department was coming
forward with some legislation, and now we have received it. And I want to thank you
very much. This will support the work that's been done. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, other questions? Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. So under the Interim zoning, as it stands now, B&B are
not allowed?
MR. ALUETA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, we are looking at B&B to be allowed in Interim?
MR. ALUETA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What happens now if we, if we pass this with a B&B
application because now it's being allowed? What is the process?
MR. ALUETA: They would fall under the process under, that was outlined and approved under
Title 19.64, which is the bed and breakfast ordinance. So when the Council adopted its
update of 1964, the bed and breakfast applications come in, provided there's not another
one within 500 feet, they'd be processed administratively, and also provided that they did
not receive "x" amount of complaints from the neighbors after they did a public, after
they did a notice in the paper, as well as posting their sign, and doing a mail-out.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. When we have time I'd like to ask the Property Tax
Division to come up, Mr. Chair, when the time will let.. .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That's fine. Members, are there any other questions?
Go ahead, Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question for Mr. Alueta. How do
we know that there's not more than one B&B within, you know, a 500-foot radius?
MR. ALUETA: How do we...oh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Who monitors that?
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MR. ALUETA: We do, and we track it on a map. And so, not only do we track them when
they, approved ones, but also we track when applications come in, so we have a map of
pending. I believe the current division maintains that, and then potential applicants who
want to come in can also come in and see that map to see whether, whether there is one in
their neighborhood already.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And if a B&B is discontinued you also make that
adjustment?
MR. ALUETA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: You give caps.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other questions, Members? Okay. If not, then we
have standing by with us, Mr. Scott Teruya from the Department of Finance. If you
would like to come forward we have a question by Member Nishiki here concerning the
tax. Thank you, Mr. Teruya, for, for being here. Okay. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, what is your relationship with the Planning Director or
Planning Department when it comes to B&B applications and its approval?
MR. TERUYA: Member Nishiki, regarding B&B permits, the current practice is at the end of
the year or at the beginning of the calendar year, the Department of Planning sends the
Real Property Tax Division a list of all the permits that have been approved for both bed
and breakfast and transient vacation rentals.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And at that point...well, let me ask you this. Are you familiar
with Interim zoning?
MR. TERUYA: Yes, I'm familiar with Interim zoning. Interim zoning is problematic in the
sense that there is no current classification called Interim, but Interim zoning properties
does have the highest and best use as well. I believe single-family residence uses is
allowed, and we do have the classification which is Residential. Therefore, the current
practice is that properties of Interim zoning are classified as Improved Residential with
the exception, though, of properties that have received Special Use Permits, Conditional
Use Permits, and, and grandfathered uses. That, that's the only exception where
classification would be something other than Residential.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And then you determine what the tax is?
MR. TERUYA: Well, the taxes...
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What they fall under?
MR. TERUYA: Correct. That would be the classification, yeah. So in, in an example of if you
had Interim zoning, and you're a mom-and-pop shop a long time ago, prior to the zoning
ordinance, and there would be a grandfathered use, your zoning says Interim, but what is
the highest and best use. The highest and best use is the interim use which is
Commercial.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you would be taxing that property via the Commercial rate?
MR. TERUYA: Correct. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What about the property around it?
MR. TERUYA: Surrounding properties?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. If the, if that property was 5,000 square feet, but the area
was five acres.
MR. TERUYA: Like I said that would be problematic because what do you do with the rest? If
the grandfathered use is only for that 5,000 square feet, I would say that that portion
would be classified as Commercial and the rest would be classified as Single-Family.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: My concern is the loss of tax revenues that...you know, we
hear the Governor speak today, and we heard from our Budget Chair about revenues.
And I'm looking at do we get a fair return on properties that are in Interim zoning? So
my question is how would you, based on what I gave you as an exercise, 5,000 square
foot business property and a five acre piece of land. How would that land be taxed?
MR. TERUYA: That's very difficult. If, if the, see the grandfathered use doesn't to me, to me
state how much land is being used for commercial. Is it the entire property? If it, the
entire property gets used for commercial, then the entire property would be taxed as
Commercial. I know you're saying only maybe 5,000 square feet of the five acres, but
unless there's a document stating that only 5,000 is restricted, then the entire parcel in our
estimation would be considered Commercial because there is an existing use on it, yeah,
of commercial.
So although it, it looks like only 5,000 square feet, unless there's something that can say
that it's only restricted to 5,000 square feet, the entire parcel would be treated as
Commercial.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So right now you are saying that you, you tax the entire five
acres as a Commercial?
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MR. TERUYA: That would be our current practice, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay. No, that's good.
MR. TERUYA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm glad you do that. The question then would be B&B if
they're allowed in Interim how, how are you taxing B&Bs right now?
MR. TERUYA: Currently, bed and breakfasts, under our memorandum, is, the current practice
is it remains in its underlying zoning. I know there's been talk in the past that there
should be creation of a new class of bed and breakfasts, but until that time is, is, that
ordinance passes, the current practice, as we stand right now, is its, its underlying zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So despite that it may be a small hotel or whatever, the
company is not, rather the, the County is not realizing additional revenues despite that we
give them a B&B permit.
MR. TERUYA: That is our current practice on classification.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, and, and, and that, that direction has been given to you
by who?
MR. TERUYA: That is the current administrative policy that's been established since 1988
written by the administrator at the time.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, fairness in taxes on properties to me is
important. And the reason why I say this is because if these so-called B&Bs, whether we
agree with them or not, right now they're legal. They're doing business. They are
making money off of that business. If revenues, more than being taxed on Single-Family
is not occurring, then you know what, all of us here are really subsidizing . . . (change
tape, start 1B). . . this use. And the question is, is that fair? And I ask you this question,
Mr. Teruya, because I don't think it's fair that this policy that you're following right now
is followed and who do we address this concern with?
MR. TERUYA: Member Nishiki, we've been asking, because bed and breakfast doesn't specify
what is the classification, we've been trying to address how we're going to handle it
moving forward. I don't have an answer for you right now other than what is our current
practice.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Anyway, Mr. Chairman, I, I'm getting off the subject matter,
but --
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --as we allow these types of uses -CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --we should also look at what these changes are and, and, and,
and what impact it is on those of us that are subsidizing these people.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. What I would like to just at least clarify is that we are
moving now to, to move the Interim Zoning forward, and it's going to include, and we're
asking to include the bed and breakfast, but it, in itself, is still really authorized in 19.64.
So all of the guidelines for bed and breakfasts will still be intact. So we're not making
any changes to 19.64.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, but your question about how to assess these things are not
going to be dealt in, in this meeting today and for this purpose. What you raise are other
questions, and I think that they can be taken up separately and apart from this. So I just
want to make clear that, that right now nothing changes within the B&B bill in itself by
allowing it to be included into Interim use. So...but you want to raise an issue like that,
then perhaps we should create some kind of communication within the Council, and then
assign it to the appropriate Committees for review, and then we can talk about that. So...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I guess, I guess when we make an approval on anything
like this, Mr. Chairman, which is a land use change, okay, we should make sure that
every...all our ducks is in its place. Right now I see it not being in place, and I see many
of us that don't operate having to subsidize this, this group. So it's something to me that
needs to be addressed as we pursue on with adopting this ordinance.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We can, we can create an item, Mr. Nishiki, that would
help to address this, and then, and send that forward to the, to the Chair for consideration
and assignment so that we don't overlook. And I, I guess my point is this, no ordinance
is perfect, and we will come across some of these areas that are going to be raised as, as
issues from time to time and that's part of our job to take care of that, so.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, you know, this Planning Department is proposing this.
I'd like to hear them also address the taxing aspect of it. I mean to me, it's something
that we hide under the rug?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: No, I don't, -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 1, 2009

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --I don't think we're hiding it under the rug. I'm just saying
that we can take it up as an item that you're raising, and we can create communication so
we won't lose that, your concern. But, Director, do you have any comments to make on
this?
MR. HUNT: Chair, I would agree with your analysis. All we're doing is proposing to add bed
and breakfast to the Interim zone. We're not proposing any changes to standards. The
issue of taxation is a valid issue. The Council, I think, or maybe it was, I'm not sure
which Committee grappled with setting up a different category. So those kind of issues
still need to be addressed, but all we're proposing today is to add a B&B to the Interim
District.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, before we move on, are there any more
questions that are related to Mr. Teruya's presence here that you have? Okay. If not,
then I want to thank Mr. Teruya for, for being here. And then I'll go to Member
Victorino, and then Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. The question I have is really, this is just
adding bed and breakfasts to Interim as you have just stated, Mr. Hunt, right?
MR. HUNT: That's correct. They'd still be subject to the standards that the Council adopted
under 19.64.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So this use of Interim zoning, and I've had this
brought up, still remains a real chronic problem, because people have land that has been,
has been Interim zoned for many years and if they want to change Rural, Ag, Urban, they
still have run across these kinds of problems. So this will correct some of these problems
as far as the, you know, defining what these all mean as far as under the interim
development; is that what you're trying to do here?
MR. HUNT: I don't think it will correct a lot of those issues that you referenced. Some of those
are based on inconsistency between the community plan and the zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HUNT: I'm not, I don't, I'm not aware of any community plan designation interim. So
essentially it's, it's a leftover relic of zoning that, that hasn't been addressed, and, and
I've talked about the long-term solution to addressing that. The Planning Department
hopes to get rid of these through the community plan.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Yeah, because, I mean, that's, this interim tag has
been nothing but a nightmare for many particular entities; right? Isn't that correct,
Mr. Alueta?
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MR. ALUETA: Yeah, if I can just, Mr. Chair, is just that the...one, one is that the, the reason
the B&Bs were added to the Interim District was, it did come up during the discussions
during the whole B&B process, but also if you look at one of the principal uses that is
listed within the Interim District single-family residences are listed, and because we've
already made the policy with regards to the use of single-family residence we felt it was
appropriate to add bed and breakfast to the Interim district. Again, it has been 51, 50,
almost 51 years since the Interim District bill or ordinance was adopted. The County has
made strides by adopting several zoning maps.
In most recent history, you've had the rural ordinance which changed any lands that were
both Interim, State, State Rural, Community Plan Rural, and less than 15 acres, excluding
Hana, was all comprehensively zoned to RU-0.5 or RU-1. You also had the agricultural
ordinance, comprehensive zoning of Agricultural District which basically said any, any
land that was designated in the community plan as agriculture was automatically zoned to
County Agriculture. So, again, that's one, those are two big steps that eliminated Interim
District within the County of Maui. We've had several other smaller maps such as Hana
town adopted their zoning maps for their urban core, which rezoned or gave County
designations of R-3, I mean residential uses, Hotel zoning. Again, out in Haiku in the
Haiku Cannery area, those areas were also comprehensively zoned out of Urban Interim
into a County zoning category.
So we're chipping away at it and, again, the Director here has a comprehensive plan that
when the new community plans come about, we'll hopefully get around to eliminating
the, the remainder of Interim.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the other question I had, and I read in here that under
special use, you know, conditional use we've approved certain B&Bs and others. When
those expire then they would fall under whatever the classification or the corrected usage
would be; is that correct?
MR. ALUETA: If they were in the, in the, if they were in the Interim district?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
MR. ALUETA: Yes, they would be able to use the new process, but the ones that are in the
conditional permits tends to be, were under Agricultural District or the Rural District,
primarily, and those under the new ordinance, when you adopted... amended 19.64 you
also amended 19.36, I mean sorry, 19.30A which is the Ag District, and you also
amended 19.29, which is the Rural District to allow for bed and breakfasts within those
two zoning, County zoning categories. So it doesn't, it doesn't necessarily reflect for the
Interim, but those conditional permits that were granted for Ag and Rural Districts will
now be covered under that other bill that you passed earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the last question I have, Mr. Chair, if I may is,
Mr. Hunt, you mentioned about grandfathering, and can you give me examples of what
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grandfathering meant in this particular issue? Or what was the grandfathering of Interim
zoning? Because you mentioned earlier about grandfathering certain properties or, you
know, so what, what was your, and that's why I was kind of confused what is
grandfathering?
MR. HUNT: I'm not, I'm not sure what, what you're referring to on the grandfathering. There
are uses that aren't explicitly permitted under the Interim zone.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HUNT: And if they were operating prior to the adoption of that zone, then they're allowed
to continue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Example, if you may. I'm, you know, I'm kind of blank
on that one. What would be an example?
MR. ALUETA: Okay, commercial uses. Charley's in Paia, Commercial zoning only goes back
about 200 feet. The back end of Charley's is community plan, might be Business, but it's
Interim. It was never zoned so it was Interim. So under the existing zoning, under the
existing Interim provision commercial uses or non-conforming uses in Interim District
are allowed to expand in that district. So under, under existing law they were... so they
were able to do improvements through that commercial building and expanded out into
the Interim District because under the, under the existing Interim code you're allowed to
actually expand a non-conforming use.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. And that's one of the provisions that we want to point out that is going
to be a slightly different change from the current Code to what we're proposing. If you
look at the ordinance that is passed out, we are proposing to move non-conforming uses
that's regulated under 19.500.100 and that reads slightly different from the, that was
adopted in 1960 or thereafter, but the 1950 version allows for non-conforming uses to
expand. Under the current law for non-conforming uses that we're proposing, they
wouldn't be able to continue to expand the non-conforming. They get to keep their
non-conforming use, but they don't get to keep, continue to expand it forever.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So is that, that's on number 6, I don't know what page that
is, that bed and breakfasts are subject to provision 19.64, and then 19.02.040
non-conformity, non-conforming large structures and use in the place or in operation as
of the date of this ordinance shall be subject to Section 19.500.110 of this Code. Is that
what you're referring to?
MR. ALUETA: Correct, and if you look above that on the, on the Ramseyer version that I
passed out, if you compared the two, the...in, in talking with Corporation Counsel and
looking at it, it's slightly more liberal under the older code or under the existing code,
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because it allows for, as my example was, if you had a non-conforming use, you were
able to continue to expand it in the Interim district whereas under 19.500.110, you get to
keep what you have, and you can, you can build on a non-conforming lot. So if you had
a substandard lot you could build on it, and you could do a single-family house, but if
you had a commercial use, if the use was non-conforming, and you were limited, and you
were, and were, had a 2,000 square foot commercial building in the Interim District, you
wouldn't be able to allow, you weren't allowed to make it a 3,000 square foot
commercial building under what we're proposing, but under the existing Interim District
you could continue to expand that non-conforming use.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just one more question, Mr. Chair, and just to
connect with this. If, what you've just said, I have an existing commercial building,
non-conforming 2,000 square feet, it burns down. Can I rebuild or that's, that's not
allowed? And, you know, that question always pops up, and it's not a, not an impossible
hypothetical question. If something was to happen and that building was to be destroyed;
hurricane, fire, whatever, could you then rebuild or because it's non-conformity, it's not
adding, it's replacing what was there now?
MR. ALUETA: You...I'll, I'll let Corp. Counsel correct me, but my understanding of it is that
the, as long as you reestablish the use within a year you would be okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Corp. Counsel? Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Go ahead.
MR. HOPPER: What I'm looking at here it says non-conforming structures, and this is in the
generic non-conformity section that is, that applies to all of 19, of Title 19, unless an
exception is provided for in a specific ordinance. It says if a non-conforming structure is
destroyed by any means to an extent of more than 50 percent of its replacement cost, at
the time of destruction, it shall not be reconstructed except in conformity with provisions
of this Title. That's for a non-conforming structure, and then there are some exceptions.
If you're talking about a non-conforming use, as a commercial use, this says for a
non-conforming use work may be done on any structure devoted, in whole or in part, to
any non-conforming use provided that work is limited to ordinary repairs, including
repair or replacement of walls, fixtures, wiring, or plumbing. Further, this work shall not
exceed 50 percent of the current replacement cost of the structure within a 12 month
period and the floor area of the structure, as it existed at the time the non-conforming use
was created, shall not be increased.
So to me it looks like you cannot spend more on repair, or replacement, or anything like
that in one year than 50 percent of the value of the property. So it is more restrictive and
that's an option for you if you want to keep it less restrictive as it is in the current Code,
that's fine, but the default provision for the rest of Title 19 is this section on
non-conformities which applies to the whole article. And one of the reasons we took out
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the specific section is that, again, this was an ordinance that was adopted prior to all of
the rest of Title 19, before any other zoning. So, among other things, it had to provide for
enforcement, it had to provide for what a violation of the Interim zoning was, and it had
to provide for non-conformities.
And what we have now, rather than in each separate zoning district when you adopt it
having your own enforcement section, your own penalty section, there is one that applies
to the entire title and this non-conformity section applies to the entire title. So in being
consistent with what we've done with, with our sort of more modern ordinances, we took
out the provision dealing with non-conformities in the Interim District and, therefore, the
default provision would apply. And so, it's your option to, if you wanted to expand that
and change the default provisions right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Chair, for
allowing me to ask these questions and get clarification.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hopper.
MR. HOPPER: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair, I'll be brief. I just wanted to wrap up that,
offer a little bit of information about the taxation issue before we put that to bed. As part
of the ordinance, the ordinance did say that when you receive your permit you do lose
your homeowner's exemption and that, of course, has a serious tax consequence because
that's a $300,000 exemption out the window. And for the average person that's at least
$600. And then with the underlying zoning that Mr. Teruya talked about, I have seen
several permits issued that now are, because they are in resort areas there's been an
interpretation that they are hotel. And so, now those folks not only are losing their
homeowner's exemption, but are paying hotel rate taxes, and we all know that's pretty
steep.
So there are tax consequences already, but our Committee did recommend that a new
category in the Property Tax Code for B&Bs and TVRs be established, and we await that
action.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for that clarification, Member Baisa.
Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. We had one submittal, written
submittal raised by a constituent from Hana, and I wanted to ask the Planning
Department for some clarifications. First of all, if bed and breakfasts included in this
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amendment to the chapter for Interim zoning, with the new community plans coming
forth, and if there's a conflict between the community plan and this amendment to the
Code, how does that work?
MR. HUNT: The Department would have to analyze both and if the community plan absolutely
prohibited the use, then even though the zoning allowed it, there's a good chance the
Planning Department would find that the B&B is not allowed by the community plan.
19.64, the B&B ordinance, I believe contains language that speaks to compliance with the
community plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So we get different interpretations or we hear differently
when we speak of community plans. Some people say, oh, it's an ordinance, so it's a
law. Some people say it's only advisory. Where there's a conflict between the
community plan and a Code, which we came up against with Public Works, it was said
that the Code supersedes the Advisory Community Plan. And what would be your
response to that?
MR. HUNT: Well, I, I can't speak to the Public Works issue, but in terms of the community
plans for the Planning Department we would look at the language and a lot of it would
depend on the language. Most of the language in a community plan is policy and speaks
to guidance. The following should occur, something should happen. If it's a policy, then
we analyze it, and if it's an outright shall or prohibited, then, then it seems to be a little
stronger, and it gives specific direction. We have recommended approval on some B&Bs
in the, or at least one, at least one B&B in the Paia-Haiku Community Plan area because
we felt it was inconsistent with the community plan policy.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for that. Because indeed when you read some
community plans, existing ones, they like to use words such as discourage, which
requires interpretation. So how does that become something that can supersede a Code
when it's more advisory or, or recommended rather than this is the way and only way it
shall be done. So, you know, it always gets into that, and I'm glad that, as far as the
Planning Department, you look at it at a case-by-case basis to review the language and,
and what's occurring.
So if B&Bs are allowed in Interim zoning, then it would not require such things as a
Variance Conditional Permit or State Special Use Permit?
MR. HUNT: It would probably alleviate a lot of that. I wouldn't say absolutely. If, if there
happen to be a State Zone or State Land Use District that, that needed a Special Use
Permit it would still be required.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, yeah, in that case then the State requirement would,
would be applied in that, those cases?
MR. HUNT: Yes, correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. And the constituent also talks about, and you
can correct me if he's wrong, one building for every 6,000 square feet is allowing...he
claims it's allowing, you know, more density in, in rural areas that would make it similar
to urban type areas. And he's citing that there's a property which has five to six
dwellings, which was then condominiumized, I hate that word, and so what, what would
be your answer to that?
MR. HUNT: We wouldn't recognize the condominiumization as creating separate parcels. So
the B&B law requires the maximum or provides for a maximum of two single-family
dwellings per lot.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Per lot. And is that lot by any particular measurement or
just per lot?
MR. HUNT: It's per the definition of lot, and we wouldn't recognize a condominiumized lot as
being a separate lot.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. How would allowing B&Bs in Interim zoning
affect, in any way, family residential use of Hawaiian hui and kuleana lands?
MR. HUNT: I, I think that's a fairly broad question. The, the best answer I can give is any
proposed bed and breakfast, by law, has to send out notice to neighbors and send out
notice to agencies. And through the notification there's an opportunity for people to
express their opinions or even object. If it, if it requires a public hearing, then it goes all
the way to the Planning Commission, and there would be further then an opportunity to
give public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. And, finally, I know our tax expert has left, but
I think this comes under planning and maybe you can answer this. If you have an
Interim-zoned lot and B&Bs are allowed, however, the lot is vacant, would you know
how that would be taxed? Because I think Mr. Teruya said that it would be taxed by
highest and best use, and if you had an operation going on it he said it would be
commercial category. So what would it be if it's just vacant, and it's Interim-zoned?
MR. ALUETA: I believe Mr. Teruya said it was unimproved residential.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Would be the tax category for that?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department.
MR. ALUETA: If I may just clarify one thing on your, on the, if there's, like you said in Hana
you have a lot of that zoned County Interim but you're either State Rural or State Ag,
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your minimum, that would still be the controlling factor. If it was in the State Urban
District and Rural you'd be allowed to build one house, one single-family dwelling for
every 6,000 square feet of land up until your fourth dwelling in which we would require a
subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: And, at that point, a Change in Zoning would be triggered.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. That's what this constituent raises and thank you for
that clarification. Thank you, Department. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. So, Mr. Medeiros, are you satisfied with
the, the responses?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes, I am, except I, I think for the Department to respond to
the effect on Hawaiian hui and kuleana lands, I, I think they express as much as they
could on that without any more specifics. So, mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other... Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, there, there's one more concern, and I don't know if Bill
raised this, but this is in regards to B&B and TVR permits, and it should be noted, "it
should be noted that much of the rural property in Hana is zoned Interim. It is my verbal
understanding from the Planning Department that this would trigger the need for a use
variance from the Maui County Council and a State Special Use Permit." Is this a fact or
is this fiction?
MR. HUNT: Is the question under existing laws that would require that or trigger that? Because
if the question is with, with adoption of the new provision, I don't think it would require
that. That's what we're trying to do is, is streamline the permitting of these B&Bs in the
Interim District. You would still need...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I, I, I guess if this is not adopted, then would the
application trigger a special use or a variance?
MR. HUNT: I believe it would require a variance and likely a special use.
MR. ALUETA: Not a special use.
MR. HUNT: A use variance.
MR. ALUETA: A use variance -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
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MR. ALUETA: --From the Interim.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So now, if we adopt this, it would not?
MR. HUNT: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It would not create a use variance?
MR. HUNT: You wouldn't need a use variance to operate the B&B. You still may need a
Special Use Permit if the State Zoning or State Land Use District is Agricultural, for
example.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. Okay. Finally, I was looking at the last page of this
pass-out today that we got under commercial agriculture, and it says "commercial
agriculture" means the selling and trading of agricultural products or byproducts for
monetary gain with annual gross sales of $2,500 or more. What triggered this? Was it a
Council request or...what triggered this and why?
MR. HUNT: Essentially, this is a reformatting issue. In the existing Interim bill there is a
provision that is the longest run-on sentence I've ever encountered in a zoning ordinance.
It literally starts midway on the second column and goes all the way to the bottom of the
page and over to the next page a little bit. And what Joe tried to do, and he can give the
details more is we're just trying to reformat the concept in there and, and make it more
legible. The three of us tried to decipher that one column that I just referred to, and we're
not the sharpest knives in the drawer, but I don't think we're the dullest either, and all
three of us had trouble understanding that, that, that run-on sentence. So we felt this
would just make it clearer. And, again, it's not to change it substantively it's just to make
it more easily understood. Joe, you had anything?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So this, so this was in there already and all you did was trying
to clarify it?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, under the, in the interim, under the existing Interim ordinance it defines
commercial ag as being $1,500, and this is $1,500 in 1958. So...and they used the term
"commercial ag" to distinguish whether or not someone needed to get a special use,
County Special Use Permit or not because it...for some reason if you...I mean again, if
you go through and you look at my table they got bee keeping, cattle or pigs, and some
other agricultural uses that they thought would be a concern given the fact that you, one
of your principal uses allowed in the Interim District was Residential District. But they
wanted to make sure, I'm, I'm assuming that in 1958 they were trying to make a
provision to recognize the existing agriculture that was going on in these Interim-zoned
lands.
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And so, we, the $2,500 number came up only because that's the number that was thrown
out during the hearings during the bed and breakfast. And, again, during...one of the
notes from one of the Maui Planning Commission felt that there should be some type of
economic or GDP price deflator added on to that provision for $2,500 so that you don't
have us in 20 years, or hopefully, we won't have Interim District anymore, but if it does
last another 20 years, that you're not still using a low number on it, I guess.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So interpret this law here because I, I thought that . . . (change
tape, start 2A). . . for someone to operate an agricultural stand, that whatever that person
either grew could be marketed. In this law now it seems like it opens up to more than just
what a person grows, or maybe slaughter, or whatever.
MR. ALUETA: I don't think the definition changes anything with regards to...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You don't think it does?
MR. ALUETA: No, not with regards to your agricultural fruit stand within the Agricultural
District. This only deals primarily where, where the term "commercial ag" is used and
the only place that we found so far where commercial ag is used primarily is, is going to
be in the Interim District where it makes a specific reference to the definition. So rather
than have the definition in the Chapter, we felt it should be in 19.04. We should be in the
definition section of the County Code and that's all we're doing is just moving that
definition over to the County, to the definition section of the County Code to be
consistent.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other further questions? Okay. Seeing
none, then the Chair's recommendation is that we adopt this, excuse me, that we adopt
for passage this bill for first reading and for filing of the communications.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Question?
MR. HUNT: And, again, the Department is requesting that you add a clause of public use or
quasi-public facility as a use in the, in the Interim District.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, would you like me to propose the amendment?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Amendment, okay. Go ahead.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair, I move to amend to add to Section 19.02.030.A.4,
that it be revised to read that construction of new or the expansion of existing parks,
playgrounds with the addition of public/quasi-public buildings or community centers
owned or operated by either private or governmental agencies, and tower structures in
support of a utility be added.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, it's been moved and seconded that we pass,
for first reading, and amended to include the inclusion of what Member Johnson just
read. Is there any question on the motion? Is it clear? Go ahead, Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and all that, from my understanding, that is being requested by
the Planning Director is that we just insert the public/quasi-public buildings which was
not a part of the original draft that we had.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So the rest of it would remain the same.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead.
MR. HOPPER : Just to ensure the, the definitions are public facility, or quasi-public facility, or
public use, or quasi-public use, those are both defined terms. I just want to make sure
those were the terms we were looking at adding here, so we can make those corrections.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
MR. HOPPER: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any discussion on the motion? Member
Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I, I just want to make it crystal clear for, for me that
when we pass an ordinance and, and one that now allows bed and breakfast, I think that,
and I thank Gladys for explaining what some of the outcomes may occur when someone
loses their home exemption, but I'll tell you something, nobody is stupid enough and, if
they are, then that's their problem, to look at opening something like this, and then seeing
that economically it may not work out. I think that as Gladys has said, the rules are, have
been passed and exemptions or no exemptions have been addressed.
The thing that I have, Mr. Chairman, is, and I think Mr. Hunt took the brunt of this a year
and a half ago from those people that were operating bed and breakfasts all over Maui
County, and they mentioned about the loss of income, the loss of nearby businesses, and
the slowing down of the economy, but it only goes to show you that, and they talk about
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the millions of dollars that are being lost. It only goes to show you that this activity
doesn't, in reality, create a lot of money to the economy. But, similarly, I would hope
that the, in the Committee report we note that the taxing of these properties should be
addressed immediately. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Members, any other discussion?
Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Any opposed? Okay. Let the record show that all were
unanimous, and we have one non-voting Member that's present with us, with Mike
Molina excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending approval of amendment to main motion.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Members. Chair...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Back to the main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That was the amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, I, I thought...okay. The main motion...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I did.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: There was a second — Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But she made an amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Did you second the amendment?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Going back to the main motion as amended
then, all those in favor signify by saying aye?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You want to discuss it?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No, I just was going to just say that I know Mr. Nishiki had, you
know, his discussion, and I think, I'd just like to say even though we already voted on it,
as an afterthought, that the issues that Mr. Nishiki raises and the wider questions that deal
with permitted uses and some of the other complications that occur in an Interim zone,
I'm hoping that we can deal with those because even Mr. Medeiros from Hana, not
everyone agrees with allowing all of these uses in every particular area.
So I'm hoping that we can mitigate some of the concerns for those individuals that really
are not supportive of, particularly bed and breakfasts in, in areas where it is inconsistent
with the existing community plan. And I do hope that our Director, if applications do
come forward, that are not consistent with any community plan, that they will not be
supported as to the application whether it's a bed and breakfast or even a Special Use
Permit for particular facilities within those districts. So I'm, I'm trusting the
Administration to follow both the directive under our law, as well as the community plan
which, in many cases, is very clear and very specific about what is or is not desired in a
particular community. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I just want to speak for the last time, but just because of what
Jo Anne said. You know, we've had, I think someone mentioned earlier, I think Alueta
mentioned we've had this Interim zoning since, what, 1958? Mr. Chairman, the Planning
Director, and there were probably previously two or three that I know of, you guys got to
start comprehensively zoning all of these parcels, then we won't have to deal with this.
What's your reason for not? And that's all I have to say.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Fifty years.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, while we're on discussion, you know, as the Department
clarified we do have Rural zoning, and we do have Ag zoning. I will tell you that the Ag
zoning came after 34 years of being Interim. So it means that this Council can start to
hone in and, Member Baisa, here's an opportunity to take on all zoning categories and
eliminate Interim all together, you know, but that's essentially what we're, we're having
to do. And once we complete that there will be no such thing as an Interim zone, but in
the, in the interim what we are faced with are these kinds of uses and that are in areas that
are not zoned yet.
So the question for us today is whether or not we want to allow for these uses, and by
passing out this we are saying that these are the, the ones that we are agreeing to, but it's
still Interim. But these uses will...and let's not confuse the, the B&B zoning ordinance.
It is a separate, separate part of the County Code, and it is organized there as, as Member
Baisa has worked through. So we're not asking to make any changes in the B&B. It
already is intact. All this is, is allowing it to be used in an Interim-zoned area. So,
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. Just some trivia. I graduated from Old Maui
High School in 1958, and I'm so excited to hear that 50 years have been in Interim.
Thank you. . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. I just want to clarify the motion that, Member
Johnson...the main motion was to amend and to include the filing of the communication.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, just, you know, for purposes I guess to clarify. I would,
at this point, move to file the communication.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Let's finish this then as a separate motion. Then, can I
just take the vote on the main motion then.. .
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, I thought we already took the vote, and -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. No.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --we were just making the comments afterwards.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Well, when you started out I, I took that as discussion.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, okay. All right. I'm sorry, because I already thought we took
the vote on the main motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, it was tough to, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I know.

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 1, 2009

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So we did not, I did not ask for the vote on the main motion.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. That's fine. And I have no further comments. And my
motion then will include, as a friendly amendment, the filing of the communication.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So back to the main motion and all those in favor... as
amended, including the filing, signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Those opposed say no. Okay. Let the record indicate
all ayes, one Member excused, and Member Pontanilla is joining us for support.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised proposed bill and
FILING of communication.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, can we move on then to the next item on the
agenda, and this would be PC-43. And at this time, what the Chair would like to do is
open up for, if there's no objections open up for testimony on this item.
ITEM NO. 43: RURAL ZONING DISTRICTS (C.C. No. 08-225)
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then we have Mr. DeLeon that's signed up for
testifying on this particular item 43, PC-43. So, Mr. DeLeon?

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. DELEON: Thank you. For the record, Dave DeLeon speaking on behalf of the
REALTORS® Association of Maui on PC-43, Rural Zoning. RAM supports this
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proposal by former Council Chair Hokama because it's a necessary step towards
correcting a serious malfunction in our current zoning code.
Maui has thousands of two to ten-acre properties that are zoned for agricultural use which
cannot, in the reality of our economy, ever function as actual farms. Some of these
properties do have actual farm operations, many do not. The far majority of these
properties are actually rural in character and are owned with mortgages that make
full-time farming on these properties impossible. Their owners simply have to have day
jobs in order to make ends meet. Under our current zoning laws our Planning
Department has no choice but to force these property owners to farm. But how do you
force somebody to really farm? RAM believes that we need to end this fiction by
permitting these properties to shift to rural classifications so that they are zoned to match
their actual character. The bill before you today is the necessary step in that process
creating zoning classifications that would allow rural zoning without allowing increases
in density. The General Plan Advisory Committee called for this reclassification in the
Maui Island Plan and the State Legislature has been working toward changes in State law
to allow this to happen. For these reasons, we support this measure and ask that it be
allowed to proceed through the Planning Commissions.
And, Mr. Chairman, I would like to take a moment to point out that I can actually speak
to a property, a B&B property which actually...somebody this, this Council approved this
last year. To...it took I believe seven to eight years for this person to get his permit and
when he got his permit it was a conditional permit for B&B. And the gentleman found
that his taxes increased by five times because, because the Finance Department chose to
tax the whole agricultural property as hotel. That is record, that is knowledge, and there's
more than one of them. The other one Mr. Teruya was talking about, and I really take
exception to the impression that was left on the record.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Any questions for the testifier,
Members? Okay. Is there anyone here that would like to also testify on this item?
Seeing none from the gallery, then the Chair would like to close public testimony without
any object...with any, no objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Members, PC-43 is Rural Zoning Districts.
Before the Committee is a proposed resolution submitted by former Council Chair G.
Riki Hokama during the prior Council term to seek Planning Commissions' review of a
bill establishing additional Rural Zoning Districts. The County Code currently
recognizes Rural Zoning Districts with minimum lot acres of half acre and one acre. The
bill submitted by Mr. Hokama would establish new Rural Zoning Districts with minimum
lot areas of 5, 10, and 20 acres, respectively. Enactment of this legislation would give the
Council more zoning options in rural areas.
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I'd like the Planning Director to briefly explain some of the possible effects of
establishing the proposed new Rural Zoning Districts. And with that I'm going to ask the
Department for your comments.
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Chair. Again, as a little background, this was a Council-initiated bill.
The existing Rural zone has minimum lot sizes of a half acre or one acre and this bill
would, as I understand it, would add a two-acre minimum lot size, a five-acre minimum
lot size, and a ten-acre minimum lot size. The Planning Department believes that this
would add a planning tool to our toolbox and in that sense, the Department supports
having another tool. There may be instances where community wants a larger minimum
lot size for less density or perhaps a larger agriculture-oriented lot. As has been noted,
it's hard to do agriculture on a, on a two-acre lot.
At the same time, the Department has some concerns with adding more rural
development. Rural development is, is the epitome of sprawl. When you study sprawl
there, there's all sorts of different factors that people use to, to debate sprawl because it's
such a hot term right now. But one of the defining factors is low-density development
and rural development is low-density development with all the impacts that comes from
it: increased services, cost to the County, increased commuting for the people who live
in those areas because of services and the stores, et cetera, they have to drive to. It's also
counter to one of the themes that we heard very loud during the Maui Island Plan process
which was to keep the country, country. If we keep adding people and development out
in the rural areas it seems counter to that plea that we kept hearing so loud and clear.
So the bill, when you look at the bill all it actually does is, is add a minimum lot size with
those three categories two, five, and ten. It doesn't rezone any properties. And the
debate on rezoning properties to Rural should be a very well analyzed proposal. And so,
at this point we're okay with sending the bill to the Planning Commissions, and, and we
can discuss the bills and the idea that it adds a tool to the planning toolbox. But, again,
we, we don't support a lot of Rural zoning. We hope it's, it's good to have another tool
in our tool box. We hope that tool isn't used very much, frankly.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Director. And the Chair stands corrected. I
misstated the, the lot sizes. I said five, ten, and 20, and they're in fact two, five, and ten.
Okay. Before we take any questions for the Director, just so Members know that the
Chair's recommendation is going to be to allow this resolution to be passed so we can
move it on to the Planning Commissions for their review. At this time, I'll open
questions for the Director. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I share your concerns, Mr. Hunt, with regard to overall
smart growth. The goals and objectives that we have in our community plans also may
pose a problem because this is not consistent with some of the verbiage that's in, and
more specifically the West Maui Community Plan, because we don't want to encourage
growth outside of certain boundaries or in areas that were formerly ag lands.
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With regard to the agricultural potential under the ALISH rating system, have you taken a
look at this particular aspect of the ordinance that's being proposed, or the change in the
ordinance with regard to lands that have a very high rating in terms of their land use or
their classification for soils?
MR. HUNT: The Department interprets the bill as being very specific in its result, and that
would be that there's only additional minimum lot sizes allowed. So in the existing law
we have no choice but to allow maximum lot size of one-acre in the rural as, as a
minimum lot size. I didn't state that very well, but the, the tool now we could allow a
minimum lot size of two, five, or ten. And so, we think that's a good tool. The whole
process then of applying that tool this bill doesn't affect that. So the analysis of ag land,
and ALISH, and, and all the policies on preserving ag land and whenever we change the
zoning, this bill has no effect on that. All those criteria are... still remain.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So this would be just simply on rezoning this would be applicable?
MR. HUNT: Yes, through the analysis of should land be reclassified from Ag to Rural, all those
standards that exist right now would remain the same, but the end result could be, okay,
we as a community, we did decide it should go to Rural. Now, however, we could
require a large minimum lot size. And there are some examples where, and the testifier
mentioned it, where there are some ag subdivisions out there that people have said, well,
let's call a spade a spade, they're not really agricultural. Let's change them to Rural. But
if we did that right now a two-acre ag lot could be subdivided into two one-acre lots, or if
we gave it a half acre, he could do four.
So one of the responses has been, well, let's create a higher Rural -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.
MR. HUNT: --minimum lot size, a two-acre or even a five, so that we could go into these
gentleman farms or whatever you want to call them, and say, okay, we, we are going to
change you to Rural, so you get out from underneath that cloud hanging over you of not
being a farm. However, we're not going to allow you to, to subdivide further --

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.
MR. HUNT: --because the minimum lot size is larger now.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I share your concerns because it's a double-edged
sword, as far as I'm concerned, because you're gaining on the one hand, but then you're
opening up the door for if there is really prime agricultural land that is now being
proposed for conversion to Rural and it's large acreage, I wouldn't want to see that large
acreage actually be converted if it's something that's very farmable and very usable for
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ag purposes. I know sometimes water is limited, but, you know, that, that does concern
me.
Have you visited with the Real Property Tax Division as to how the allowance of these
larger lot sizes would be looked at in terms of taxation?
MR. HUNT: No, we haven't. Again, this is kind of a preliminary review, and then we send it to
the Planning Commissions. I think we would do a more thorough analysis at the
Planning Commission level and really dive into the details. That's kind of our general
procedures. Before you guys send it down we'll give you some kind of an overview of
comments. And if you decide to send it down, it's worthy of further debate, then we'd
really get into the details.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I, I support, Mr. Chair, the general direction of allowing these
larger lot sizes, because I think that half acre, acre, you know, it's just not, you know, it,
it really is not rural. It's almost closer to residential in terms of the size. But I think my,
my other concern is the tax ramifications, because if you have a person that has a
five-acre parcel, and it's Ag currently, and then you convert that to a Rural use, you
know, I mean personally the costs that are associated with serving residential type
developments in remote or rural areas is really a cost to the taxpayers because when we
even went to fight the Olowalu and the Launiupoko, you know, fires it's really a huge
cost.
And I think that in those circumstances if we're going to do this and people want to move
onto rural land where they don't want to farm I think that we really have to look at the tax
ramifications and perhaps tax those individuals and say, well, if you have farmable land,
but you simply choose not to farm it, well, then you in essence should be subsidizing
those individuals that do wish to farm, and then classify them in a higher tax category
because these rural-type developments are what's coming up right now.
And, you know, with all due respect, Mr. Hunt, I think where we have a big problem
right now is on enforcement of our existing laws as to the requirement of farming and
what is a farm plan. And that, Mr. Chair, is something that I'd like to raise, as a separate
issue, but not for today. So thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson, for raising those issues,
and I'm sure that there will be considerations before the commissions. Okay. Members,
go ahead, Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman, just clarification. Mr. Hunt, you
say that the tax implication on the various categories two, five, and ten would be
discussed during the Planning Commission. And do you have any, or will the
commission have any feedback from Real Property Tax?
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MR. HUNT: Given the discussion today, it would be imperative for us to send a referral or
transmittal to the Real Property Tax people and, and make sure that they comment on
that. That's why we're having this work session -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. HUNT: --to let us know what your concerns are.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, you know, catch it at the front end
rather than the back end is the way to go. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That's two notices. Okay. Any other questions,
Members? Go ahead, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I, I know that this bill is to, the
Planning Department is requesting some changes, but I wanted to ask, and I don't think
it's a change you're asking for, but maybe you can give me some rationale behind it. But
on Page 3 of the bill, under 19.29.040, it's not a change, but because now we're talking
about RU-2, RU-5, and RU-10, which is two, five, and ten-acres, why wouldn't schools
and churches be included as a permitted use without a Special Use Permit? Because
these rural areas, as described in the other part of the ordinance, are residential. They're
allowed to have single-family dwellings on them.
So, you're talking about town areas, but in the rural setting. What, what is the rationale
not to have a school permitted there especially when you have ten-acres permitted and
church, and cemetery? How would cemeteries work where in rural areas, like Hana, we
have people that are buried at home from long time ago? How would this ordinance treat
that? And I know that's not your changes, that's an existing, but just give me a quick
rationale why you think, and, and it's my understanding from listening to a lot of
planning in various projects that the sense is that we're going back to mixed use so that
we can keep more people off the road, that they can walk to things within their residential
area. So why would we not include schools, and churches, and cemeteries, which are a
part of a village or a community?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Director Hunt.
MR. HUNT: First, let me correct and make it clear that this is a Council-initiated bill, so the
Planning Department's not initiating it -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I'm sorry.
MR. HUNT: --but we feel that there are some positives to the bill, and it's at least worthy of
debate at the Planning Commission level, and we'll see what our final recommendation is
at that time. The, the existing special uses, this is your existing law, 19.29.040.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Correct.
MR. HUNT: It says schools and churches, et cetera, require a Special Use Permit in a Rural
zone. So no one's proposing that. That's what our law says today. Generally speaking,
special uses create impacts that are slightly larger than permitted uses in a zone and yet
they're similar enough to where they, they would be allowed. The special use just gives
notification to neighbors and agencies in a public hearing, and it gives an opportunity for
the community to come out and say, well, do we want a school in our community with
the impacts of the traffic, or et cetera.
And so, I agree with your analysis that, you know, perhaps schools shouldn't be a special
use in the Rural District, but I think all this bill is really trying to do is keep it very simple
without doing an overhaul of the Rural District and just say, all we want to do is add
larger minimum lot sizes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, and I understand that, you know, to be the case here.
But when you look at permitted uses it shows kindergartens, nursery schools. You doing
the same thing that a school does and yet the school requires a Special Use Permit. It's
hard to understand the rationale behind it. And, but I, I know that the proposal is to
create the RU...the three new districts I guess, the RU-2, 5 and 10, right?
MR. HUNT: Correct. . . . (change tape, start 2B)..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So I, I'm still concerned, and I raised this point
before, and I guess it would take, you know, legislation to change that part of the Code.
MR. HUNT: We, we can raise that issue -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. HUNT: --at the Planning Commission level.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. HUNT: There's always a dilemma for us when we're revising an ordinance. If we keep it
specific and tight, it stands a better change of getting through. There's always that desire
to take advantage of the opportunity and open it up and start analyzing other issues. The
more you open it up, perhaps there's some controversy, and then the whole thing dies.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. HUNT: So, but perhaps we can look at refining the Rural District on a very minimum
basis.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I think those, those of us that come from large
rural districts would appreciate that. And, but I do want to ask because there is, if this
passes it goes to the Planning Commissions; right? How would we be able to ask and be
granted that it go to the Hana Advisory Committee also, so that they can make
recommendations from a very large rural district like Hana to the Maui Planning
Commission? What would it take to do that?
MR. HUNT: Just so I understand the question. What would it take for the Hana Advisory
Committee to review this bill or...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, to be included in the discussions, right.
MR. HUNT: Well, you're the representative of that district. We'll pass that information on to
the Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Do you...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros, maybe in the language of the proposed
action today is to include that upfront and simply...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and that was part of my question. Can we do
that in this meeting? And, you know, I would recommend that and, you know, does it
take a motion or...to do that, or, or we just, as a consensus, would say that?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: I, I can include that in the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Department.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other questions? Okay. Seeing none, then the
Chair's recommendations is that the proposed resolution attached to your binders be
referred to the Lanai, Maui, Molokai, and Hana Planning Commissions [sic] for a draft
bill pertaining to the Rural Districts.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Second?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I second.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, discussion?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Discussion.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. Hana is not a planning commission. I just
wanted to make that... it's a Hana Advisory Committee that sends their recommendations
to the Maui Planning Commission. So I just wanted to be sure that was correct.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We'll note that specific change in, in the, in the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other further discussion? Seeing none, then all those in
favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed? Okay. Seeing none, then all ayes, Member Molina
excused, and we have Member Pontanilla in attendance as a non-voting Member.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho' ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of revised proposed resolution.

CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Members. If we can, then let's move to the
third item on our agenda.
ITEM NO. 7: OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING (C.c. No. 09-81)

CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Members, our last item today is PC-7, and this is our, our third
and final item this afternoon called the Off-Street Parking and Loading. Mr. Alueta
outlines some of the concepts included in this legislation to the prior Council's Planning
Committee in September 18 of 2007, and when another parking bill was being
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considered. At that time, some Members requested that the Department of Planning draft
new legislation and submit it to the Planning Commissions. The Department compiled
[sic] with that... complied with that request and the Planning Commissions have
recommended approval of the bill.
The bill before the Committee has several objectives. One is to promote the pedestrian,
and transit use, and mixed use projects; two, simplify the County Code by incorporating
tables and graphs; three, limit the use of compact stalls; four, reduce the amount of
impermeable surfaces; and, five, recognize design guidelines and standards adopted for
our diverse and unique communities.
So I'd like the Planning Director and Mr. Alueta then to provide additional background
on this information, but before we do that I'd like to open up this item for public
testimony. So without any objections, Members, we'll open to public testimony. No
objections?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objections.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We have one testifier at this time and, Mr. DeLeon,
would you come forward please? Thank you.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. DELEON: Dave DeLeon, for the record. I didn't really mean to hog the microphone. I
was going to do this all in the three minutes side of the testimony, but it kind of worked
out this way. RAM supports this measure because it begins to set the planning concepts,
collectively known as smart growth, into Maui County Planning Policy. Specifically, this
measure takes steps toward land use policies that would redirect our community from one
dominated by the automobile to one, well, more human in character. It does this by
creating planning policies that favor the simple human activity of walking over the use of
motor vehicles for even short distances and trips. I also serve as the Environment Chair
for the State Department of Health's, Nutrition and Physical Activity Coalition. And in
that capacity we deal with what the car does to the way we operate in this community.
You know, cars are a wonderful thing, and we all use them, but when I first moved here I
had to ask why wasn't there any, any, any pedestrian facilities in Maui County, and it was
explained to me that it was illegal to be a pedestrian here. Of course, that was tongue in
cheek, but I mean, it almost felt that way. If you wanted to exercise try to walk from
Starbucks on Dairy Road to Mana Foods, not Mana Foods, but to Down to Earth and see
what you have to do to get across the street. It's just...we're not designed for people to
move around by, by walking. Actually, about one-third of all automobile trips in the
United States are less than a mile. And if you get in the car, one percent of the energy
being used by that car is actually to move your body. The rest of it is the inefficiencies of
the motor and the actual energy needed to move the mechanical, the 2,000, or 3,000,
4,000 pounds of weight around you and that's not sustainable, and that's the way we're
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living. Of course, we all need our cars to get around long distances, but this bill starts to
create a much more walkable community and a community that would allow people to
use their bodies much more just to get around. Three hundred sixty-thousand Americans
die every year from the lack of activity. I'll leave you with that note.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Members, any questions for
the testifier. Okay. Seeing none, thank you very much. Is there anyone else here that
would like to testify on this item that hasn't signed up? Seeing none, then the Chair
would close public testimony with no objections, Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Public testimony is now closed. I'm going to go to the
Department then to give us an overview on this item. So, Planning Department, Director
Hunt.
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Chair. As has been noted the bill is intending to reformat or revise the
Parking District Bill, 19.36. It was an outgrowth of the Council review of a previous
parking bill, as has been noted. There is a number of issues that the bill hopes to address.
One is the formatting, or reformatting of the existing bill or existing Zoning Code.
There's also some smart growth concepts as has been noted specifically for joint uses. So
if you have a commercial use that uses parking during the day and the residential that
uses it at night, the hope is that we don't have to build two parking lots, they can just
share that one parking lot. It is in line with the concepts of smart growth where you start,
where you're starting to allow mixed uses in our zoning districts.
And so, this is consistent with some other bills that we will be coming forward with in the
near future where we're, for example, proposing to allow residential uses in our business
districts. So it kind of goes hand-in-hand with these other bills that are coming your way.
And with that I'll turn it over to Joe Alueta who will go through it. It's quite a detailed
bill, and so it may require a little bit of review.
MR. ALUETA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Again, the bill originally started as kind of a revamping.
If you recall, last year or maybe a year and a half ago, Riki Hokama had proposed a
residential mixed use districts. Primarily, it was identified within Maui Lani, as well as
the creation of that which would limit it to...and the projects would be limited for...had
to have a minimum lot size of 20,000 square feet for the lot. The Department felt that
that type of mixed use concept should be applied to all areas of Maui County Code and
that... so someone could come in with a smaller or what would be called a mixed use
project in which they would get a bonus if they incorporated such as residential uses
above a commercial use. We currently allow for it within the B-CT. We will...in the
upcoming codes that we will bring forward to this Council will also allow mixed
use...residential uses within the other business categories.
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And so, we took the opportunity to redraft and reformat the entire 19.36, again, trying to
incorporate tables, trying to incorporate graphs as what we mean by a landscape parking,
what do we mean by crown shade tree, where's your hedges. We also took in, took the
opportunity to consolidate a lot of the parking waivers. Parking, if some of you are
familiar with the existing Code, parking waivers can be granted for industrial uses. They
can be granted for churches to use on-street parking, they can be granted for industrial
storage parking areas, they can be granted for other uses, okay. And, and if, and if you
look through the Code it's, it's kind of sprinkled here and there throughout the Code.
There's no one category or one section where you look at when, when can I apply for a
parking waiver and/or get any type of parking relief. And so, we've, we've consolidated
all of those into in one area and allowed for them, and in a way in which to encourage
mixed use development or mixed use projects. We feel that's going to simplify the Code
also.
Another thing that came up during...was allowing for grass parking and grasscrete,
encouragement of that. Paving, as I noted earlier, many areas some of the big box
retailers that we have come in, you know, such as the Home Depot, they actually have
twice the number. They have, like, 600 stalls. They're only required under the Parking
Ordinance to provide 300, but they provide double the amount and that's a lot of
impervious surface in which you have to deal with storm runoffs. And sometimes
dealing with those storm runoffs aren't dealt in the most pretty way. Sometimes they just
build a big hole and fence it around, and it doesn't look that great. We want to encourage
people to either try to incorporate grasscrete into their parking, and but this Code will
actually restrict people from building, overbuilding of parking lots and so that... and if
they want to do it, they have to do it in a parking structure or use grasscrete as their
alternative.
Other...besides the graphics and tables, we tried to provide...one of the things that the
Mayor really wanted, and it was a pet peeve of the Mayor as well as some others, was the
compact stalls. I got pictures, upon pictures of people who have...do not know how to
park a car. I have one picture of someone, which I thought was an incredible feat, they
used up four, four parking stalls with one car. They just used the X. They took four
stalls and parked their car right in the middle of the X and used up four parking stalls.
So...and a lot of times you see compact stalls are not, there's not a compact car in them.
So we will, the Code still allows for compact stalls. We feel they are a useful feature
with certain projects, part of the hotel developments or whatever, but we feel they should
be grouped together and labeled accordingly as compact stalls only, but try to group them
together rather than mixing them in or having them mixed in with regular standard stalls.
Again, the joint use parking was incorporated. Try...again, there was a lot of little
changes. We did allow for special event parking that, that came up and was incorporated
into the, into the, into the Code. For temporary parking you have had...many a times
you've had the Planning Commissions, when someone comes in with a large hotel
development or large project that requires hundreds and hundreds of construction
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employees you need to provide some type of temporary parking for them and shuttle
those employees to it. So we've established a provision within the Code that will allow
for development of those temporary parking lots and... so that someone doesn't need to
fully pave an entire lot just to meet the parking code, and we can set up temporary
standards under that.
That's kind of the highlights and lowlights of the code. If you have any specific
questions, we can try to address them.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, before we go on to questions of
the Department, anyone need to take a short break? Okay. Let's do a recess and return at
3:30, and we'll continue on. Okay. Recess. ... (gavel).. .

RECESS: 3:20 p.m.
RECONVENE: 3:33 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: ... (gavel). . . Okay. The Planning Committee meeting will
reconvene. Okay. Members, we just had an overview by the Department. Are there any
questions now for the Department? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I know, Mr. Hunt, you're aware of the phantom
parking issue in Lahaina. Is there anything within this particular draft bill or the, I guess,
you know, the consolidation of some of the components and flexibility that will help us
address that issue in Lahaina town?
MR. HUNT: I don't believe so because we believe the parking issue in Lahaina would require
separate legislation that would set up a fund. So, in our mind, and let me back up, it's,
it's somewhat a complex issue, but to boil it down, in our mind the way you would deal
with parking in Lahaina and other historic districts is you would set up an in-lieu fee so
that you wouldn't be required to provide parking because in a historic district there
wasn't parking there. So in order to do that it would be a whole separate ordinance and
from what I've been told, advised, we should do a study similar to the traffic impact fee
study, but hopefully not that elaborate or lengthy, but there has to be some kind of nexus
or, you know, some rational logic behind a number that we would force somebody to pay
in-lieu of the parking spaces. And so, that's a separate issue. We, we agree with you. It
is, it is a valid issue. It's just so big that we kept it out of this bill.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and, you know, I, I know that that was one of the issues
that we had raised originally, and I think your response was similar last time, that you
didn't know, you know, and you felt it might require a separate ordinance. But I think
that, you know, just from my perspective I was looking at some of the changes, and some
of the flexibility particularly...and, and I think this would still be applicable even in
Lahaina in the historic district like with the impervious surface, like the use of grasscrete
or other areas, you know, to try to soften and create drainage opportunities, because
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Lahaina town has such poor drainage, as it is, so that, to me...I think, you know, there
may be some aspects of this that do address some of the concerns or problems in Lahaina,
maybe not specifically, but maybe on a more general basis.
So did anyone, you know...like for the Cultural Resources Commission, for example,
because they look at all of our small towns and the applicability of an ordinance that
really is going to spill over into those small towns, did you take this to the CRC and have
them look at it or to any of, like, you know, the Makawao merchants or other community
organizations to actually take a look at this or comment on the bill during the planning
process?
MR. ALUETA: No, we did...no, we did not.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. You know, and, and, you know, I'm not criticizing at all
because, you know, maybe we should have been more specific then when, I guess, we
were looking at our directive to the Administration as to where we wanted to go, but from
my perspective I, I really think it's important that we do get these small town
organizations involved and if it means when you bring forward a Lahaina Town District
Parking Ordinance or whether it's for Makawao, or Hana, whatever these small towns are
going to do to address parking in the core of their communities. I really would like to see
that done. Other than that, I really, I appreciate the fact that you put it in the format that
you did, and I hope that this will, and you can comment if you believe it will or if it
won't, provide a greater degree of flexibility so that people will not have to seek
exemptions or special dispensation when they go before the Board of Variances and
Appeals. Do you think that that's one of the, I guess, benefits of this bill?
MR. ALUETA: I think, yes, it is... sorry, Mr. Chair... is that it does provide for and encourages
mixed use developments. I'm not sure if it's going to, if people qualify for a variance,
then they can't meet the part, they would have to seek it. Variances are hard to come by,
I think in, in that aspect, but I think it, it, what it does is it allows the Director on Lanai
the ability to take in the factors of, of all things considered in granting parking waivers
and not just arbitrarily say, oh, okay, I'm doing a mixed use development, I get to waive
this many stalls. It comes down to are there...if you, if you...there's an established
criteria that from nationwide this is the standards.
You need to look at is there, is there available off-street parking, is there available off-site
parking, is there a county facility that provides off-site parking, can they enter into an
agreement privately? I mean resolving the problem business owner to business owner.
You may have another business that has excess parking stalls that they would be willing
to share, or you may have a business within the same building that operates at two
different times in which you can use a joint parking. They may have, they may be
located right next to a bus system, you know, the County bus line in which they can say,
hey, look I, a lot of my customers as well as my employees we agree that they're going to
use, they're using the bus system.

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 1, 2009

And you're seeing that, I mean especially at MCC a lot of the students take advantage of
that, that community bus to come downtown from Upcountry, and so... which alleviates
the amount of parking. You also saw recently the approval for the swap meet which has
a joint, basically is a joint use of the MCC parking lot. They're not in the parking lot,
they're next to it, they're a commercial activity, but they operate, theoretically, for the
most part, opposite of the peak loads for the MCC.
And I think that this bill allows the flexibility for commercial property owners to seek out
alternatives rather than just providing on-site parking. But in a lot of cases, because
we're not going to switch from automobile centric society to everybody biking and
running to work, or taking mass transit overnight, but this is a step in the right direction
as you ease into that. So I think it will help, and I think it...in the case of the phantom
parking in Lahaina, I think this does address part of the phantom parking because it
requires that there be some type of agreement that shows where your parking is going to
be, and it also doesn't just grant the waiver automatically. Okay, it's, it's up to the
Director to waive certain amount of stalls and has the ability to waive up to 30 percent of
the stalls. So if you're located next to a County facility of more than 150 stalls, which I
believe is only in Lahaina as well as Wailuku town. I mean it used to be Wailuku town,
but now...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I really appreciate that because the way I was
reading it I think it does address some of the things.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And in Lahaina, specifically, the problem that, that we always have,
which I think is much better now is you want to park close to the place that you want to
go and that's very difficult to do, especially in downtown Lahaina. But now with the bus,
and with our route, and the Lahaina Villager I think that provides some opportunities for
people to park outside of Lahaina town and come in. So, Mr. Chair, I, I have no further
questions. I, I do appreciate this, and I think the only way we're going to actually see if
this is workable is to implement it. And if it needs modifications at some future point, if
it's working, wonderful, if it's not working we're going to hear about it fairly soon after
it's implemented.
But I really appreciate...and I do appreciate the Department taking the initiative and
whatever you can do to expedite our Historic District Parking ordinance or some of our
other small town parking district ordinances, I'd really appreciate that because I don't...I
agree with you. I do not think we need a huge expensive study. I think that there may
actually be enough studies already in existence that we can just bring the data forward
and make a recommendation based on that. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Vice Chair. Member Medeiros, go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I have maybe two or three
questions. The first one, and I'm sure as a standard nationwide you talked about the
compact stalls, but, you know, I've been in places where that stall seems to get more
narrower and narrower each time where you get in there, and you cannot open the doors
on the car. So I'm wondering if that's a good standard to keep.
And the other part to that is when you have compact stalls, you have SUV and trucks,
they just straddle the line and, and take two stalls and the reason they do that is because
there's no enforcement. I mean how do you do enforcement; right? Does the shopping
center do it? No, you don't see them doing it. They don't even, you don't see them very
often enforcing the disabled parking stalls for people with disabilities. Many times you
see cars pull in there, yeah, they have a placard, but the person gets out and runs to the
store. You know, so I think the enforcement part is difficult.
I'm glad for Costco where the stalls are so wide you almost could fit two compacts in one
stall, and it makes it so convenient to open the doors, and to load, and unload, and so
forth. So I would say, you know, consider that. I know with compact stalls they can
probably qualify better to meet the number of stalls they need, but some of it is really
difficult to use.
I wanted to ask, you know, like a town like Paia or Makawao where you have existing
buildings up to the sidewalk and there's no parking along the sidewalk, how do
businesses in those buildings qualify or comply and meet the requirement for parking
stalls?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Go ahead.
MR. ALUETA: Right now if you...existing commercial buildings qualify they're basically
non-conforming uses. So they, as long as they continue the use as a commercial, and
they don't change the use or intensify the use, they do not need to provide any more
parking.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: They don't have to meet the requirement?
MR. ALUETA: Right. They don't have to meet the requirement. If they intensify the use and
change from, say, a retail to a restaurant -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. ALUETA: --and that triggers more parking, then they will be required to meet the new
requirement for parking.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And if they can't meet that new requirement because there
isn't property available around them, what happens to that?
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MR. ALUETA: Then they either don't make the conversion or they, or they try to seek off-site
parking, or in, in development. And, and a lot of times it has to be a certain...economy is
the scale, and I think recently you saw the recent Paia...I don't know if it was Paia Town
Center where they chose to kind of consolidate, and they recognized they needed to come
up with a formal parking lot, and you'll, you'll eventually see that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. And then, finally, I just wanted to share this
information. How important parking is because we're aware of a Wailuku Town study
that studied just the central part around the County buildings and so forth, where there
were approximately 200 stalls and 600 people that needed to park. So we're, you know,
way behind the parking, and I don't know how we correct that, but somehow we can see
how people park down very narrow roads and make it difficult for traffic to proceed
through, especially emergency vehicles. And so, parking is a tough issue to consider
because of the number of people needing parking and because we have fallen way behind
in providing parking. So, you know, too bad that our municipal parking, you know, we
haven't been able to do the multi-level parking to help alleviate some of the parking
needs, but that's where it stands. But thank you, Department. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Members, other questions for the
Department? Go ahead, Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In existing shopping centers do you take into consideration
when you are looking at this new ordinance, workers?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, the existing ordinance does take it into account. That's...they just
calculate it based in...on the square footage. So they base it on traffic . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, let me, let me give you a case in point of existing situations
that I know of. Millyard; you're familiar with Millyard
MR. ALUETA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and the amount of businesses there. The parking that they
want to provide for customers, this meaning that many people have to park off-street. So
does this ordinance take into consideration the fact that we have off-street parking. I, I, I
think when I look at that...the development there . . . (change tape, start 3A). . . there's
really an inadequate amount of parking. Similarly with the industrial development,
A&B, on the Paia side of Puunene, that whole area there that they developed. And I
know that it's probably light industrial, right, and they put up buildings, but basically
they're businesses. And when you look at trying to find parking, again, people are
parking all over the off-street parking, and we have limited amount of parking for people
that want to solicit the businesses.
Is this something that you see where the shortfall in our existing parking ordinance or do
you think that what I'm saying is something that's adequate? But with small businesses
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packing into a commercial building, you've got now employee parking and the inability
of customers to park there.
MR. ALUETA: I think...if I may, Mr. Chair? It's...this bill doesn't help or hurt the situations
that you point out, meaning, meaning the, the parking standards that were developed
when the Code initially came up with regards to what is the ratio of parking stalls for
square footage commercial or square footage of restaurant is pretty standard. It's pretty
close to standard nationwide, I mean from my, from my studies. So...and they're based
on...I'm assuming they're based off traffic counts. I wasn't, not an engineer, and I
haven't researched it beyond that, but you are going to find where you have a successful
business, you know, attracting more customers than they can accommodate, as far as
parking, especially if you have everybody coming one person for one car.
So...and you see that whenever you have a grand opening. You have a temporary
shortage of parking or during the Christmas season where you have a high, high volume
of traffic. Most businesses celebrate that, that lack of parking if they...because that
means they're busy, but at the same time it does create, it pushes the burden of that
parking onto the County facilities of, of on-street parking. We recognize it. We try to
best accommodate, you know, the pros and cons for each business, and I think that's
what, nationwide, every, every community did. I'm not sure if this is going to resolve
those few businesses that have, that need probably more parking. Those businesses that
recognize they need more parking build or develop more parking stalls, you know, than
they need to begin with, because they, they know from past history, especially if they're a
franchise, but sometimes new businesses they, they don't know.
For the most part, I think, if you go around there's pretty much adequate parking during
normal business times, but I think that, you know, you have that rare occasion where
somebody's way busier, and then you have some businesses that, you know, they only
got one stall in a six, you know, a six stall parking lot. So I think it's...you can't, you
can't, you can't accommodate almost everything. You can overkill which is what we're,

we're trying to avoid.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Well, I think in a lot of the places that you talked about, in big box areas,
they purposely put more parking. They weren't forced to by ordinance. They know that
people go and want to not have to hassle for parking space and that's why they do it. My
question is, in what you're doing now, by allowing bonuses, I guess, when someone puts
a residential mixed use on the second floor. And that's the way I envision it. I don't
think that they're going to put a residential unit on the bottom floor. You want to now
give a bonus. What would...or where is that guarantee that these people that are living
on top they're going to have to essentially park on the bottom. So it may not be someone
that goes to work, it may be a retired person. It may be a family that has three or four
cars. So I don't see how this is going to work or is it something that you've seen
happening nationally where this is a trend?
MR. ALUETA: I think...
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Department.
MR. ALUETA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I think when Riki Hokama drafted his version, which,
which first allowed for this mixed use development, his parking standards we had some
concern with, because he had reduced the amount of parking stalls dramatically, in some
cases, for these mixed use projects. We have yet to see how these mixed use, mixed use
developments that under his section of Title 19.36 will pan out because he set a certain
restriction, meaning you had to have a 20,000 square foot size.
Within the County's, the Planning Department's proposal, right, for mixed use projects
where someone accommodates, puts a residence above a retail space we're not
guaranteeing that waiver, okay. We just take that into consideration and the maximum
amount of stalls that can be waived is 30 percent, okay. So the waiver, and the waiver is
not a guarantee, okay. So it jut allows for the flexibility to have the Director review on a
case-by-case basis.
Traditional small towns or people who live above stores, retail, or, you know, it happens
now whether you believe that there's people living behind windsurf shops in the
industrial area. You know, a lot of times those are either workers, on-site workers. They
tend not to be families. They tend to be more, I mean, young urbanites that are used to
living in town and that like the nightlife, or they're just looking for cheap rent. You
know, it's a small one-bedroom, one-bath unit, and they're kind of operating more as the
security for the, for the owner, or they are themselves the owner. So you don't see
large...traditionally, you do not see large single-families living above a shop. It may
happen. I mean maybe Kaohu Store, down the road, in the early days when they, you
know, when they started out with their...but that's a pretty, if you look at that property
that's a good size upstairs and a lot of times it's a single, a traditional single-family house
in the back of a smaller storefront. But say in the town, like say in Wailuku Town or in
Paia Town where you have smaller shops, the traditional apartments are very small
apartments, they're not, they're not traditional larger residential units above your
commercial.
And, again, we're trying to take into account people doing that. We're not going to grant
the entire waiver. It's up...it's the discretion of the Director. They'll take into account
not only the mixed use, the type of the mixed use, surrounding parking facilities, as well
as on-street facilities, and municipal or public transportation around the area, and then,
again, the maximum that the Director or, in the case of Lanai, the Lanai Planning
Commission, the maximum they would be able to waive is 30 percent.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Other questions, Members? Okay. Member Baisa, go
ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm going through this ordinance, and it probably is
covered somewhere else, but the whole issue of parking for persons with disabilities is
covered someplace else?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Department.
MR. ALUETA: Yes, and...yes, it is currently right now. The Department does hope to bring
forth...incorporate that once we work out the details. Right now the Federal requirement,
the Public Works reviews for the ADA compliance. I did get...I got it late from a person
that was trying to get it incorporated into this ordinance. We feel we can incorporate it at
a later date. So we...you may see us, again, with a small amendment to incorporate ADA
standards.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I hope so, because I think it's appropriate. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, other questions? Okay. If not I
think, you know, what the ordinance does, as was stated earlier, it helps us to look at how
we're going to plan in moving forward. So we're not, in this ordinance, going to be able
to necessarily take care of, of current impacts or issues, but if we intend to find some way
of looking at incorporating the ideas of smart growth perhaps we need to incorporate
those ideas of public transit, looking at proximity of businesses and, and, and living
conditions or allowing for them, and then making it more walkable so that we are, in fact,
going to try and alleviate the use of automobiles, necessarily, in our current.
But if we use today's standards we have a big problem; right? And if we can only look at
it from today's perspective, then we would see this as insurmountable, but if we look at
where we want to steer this, then perhaps this is where we are starting, at least, in, in one
opportunity in the Planning Department. The other departments are going to have to
conform and, and come up with ideas that will help to synchronize our, our path moving
forward.
So, so the Chair's recommendation is that we recommend the passage of this bill for first
reading and the filing of the communications.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded that we pass this out for
first reading and filing of the communications and seconded by Member Medeiros. Any
discussions on the motion? I'll go to Member Nishiki and then...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. While this may seem like a smart growth policy, I
wonder if it is really creating more urbanization and a quality of life issue? Joe
mentioned about different scenarios of young people that would gladly live in this type of
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environment, but I don't know it's something that has hurt me when I see what is
happening to Maui and how we think that really people want to live above a business
surrounded by concrete and small little green trees growing out of a plot of dirt. It's not
suitable for quality thinking, looking at love of the place called Maui. It's dehumanizing
people and, you know, we're headed in this direction, and I was curious whether this is
how people should be living in Maui County, that's all. Places like L.A., fine, you know,
but to now dehumanize the people that live here, work here into this type of environment,
I have a problem.
And so, it's not Maui style, it's not being sensitive to the sun, the ocean, the clean air.
It's really urbanizing and creating people to live in working areas, and I think that, I not, I
not only think, but I believe that people should be able, once they get through work, to go
out and experience the quality of life that some of us enjoy, but moving in this direction
is not something that I want my fellow people living on Maui to endure. So I'm going to
be voting no.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Member Johnson, followed by Member
Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I understand Councilmember Nishiki's concerns
because obviously this is a very technical, very detailed, I guess, mainland style bill that
you would see where all the "i's" are dotted, the "t's" are crossed, everything's laid out in
a way that would settle all the issues with regard to parking. I think what Mr. Nishiki's
speaking about though speaks to how we actually plan altogether irrespective of parking,
how we move people, how we approach development in general. I don't think this bill
really covers the really serious issues that Mr. Nishiki raises, because, for me, if we
provide more public transportation, nicer bus stops, if we provide park areas that are
really attractive that encourage people to use public transportation, they will be less likely
to plan development that is centered around this type of urbanization.
So, for me, you know, I, I guess I'm between a rock and a hard place when it comes to
wanting everything that I ideally would like. I think that this makes a uniform attempt to
try to standardize parking, modernize some of the language, and, and even address those
things that were never addressed before, trying to encourage certain types of parking
surfaces so that when we do put in parking it's not just always with asphalt or concrete.
And even the creativity when you're looking, and I've seen this at Zippy's. It was kind
of interesting how they did the little piggyback parking and some of these other tandem
parking opportunities. This bill, at least, allows for that creativity and flexibility which
currently we don't have.
So while I understand and appreciate where, you know, other Members and people in the
community may have concerns, you've got to start someplace. And I think that when I
read through some of the testimony these kinds of issues were addressed. It's not perfect.
It's better, I think, than what we have currently, which doesn't allow, you know, we have
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a very simplistic and very confusing ordinance right now, and, and one that doesn't lend
itself to smart growth.
So I'll be supporting this, Mr. Chair, only as an attempt to see how it's going to work,
because the proof is actually going to come when we see the results. But I'm, I'm for
pushing more for alternative transportation and actually increasing the number of bus
stops, the settings in which that can occur, and this we're just going to have to wait and
see. And if it's not working, and if it's not producing the kind of results that we want to
see, fine, we can revisit it, but I will support it. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And although I agree with my
colleagues that there is no such thing as a perfect bill or a perfect ordinance, I think this
attempt to be cohesive is very important. It's a step in the right direction. But it's funny
how people like to say, oh, we do things to make people feel like they're inadequate or
they are a lesser of a citizen. You know, this lesser of a citizen thing, I guess I must have
been a lesser of a citizen all my life, because I remember living with my uncle guys
upstairs, above their shoe store. Eh, I kind of used to like that because I could run down
to the candy store, and run to places I wanted to go. It was right there in town. I had no
problem. I lived in rural, raised pigs and animals all my life, until I moved here. I lived
in Makawao for many years. I don't see where that was dehumanizing. Although I can
see when my colleagues have their points of view, and I don't, you know, I don't dispute
that. I've lived many forms of lives on these islands, I never felt lesser for it, and I still
don't see lesser for it.
We talk about sustainability, we talk about walkable communities, we talk about putting
people in areas where we'd have all the various services so they don't jump in their car to
go somewhere. Don't we talk about that, Mr. Chair, all the time? Isn't that part of
sustainability?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And yet when we start talking about it, when we're trying
to work it out, we have people who disagree, who say it's not good for the community. I
think anything that is really thought out well can be good for this community, and I think
this is a step in the right direction. Yeah, I agree we can look at it later. If this needs to
be changed, tweaked again, hey, that's all part of this process; isn't that, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So...but I'd like to say we've lived camp lives which
we're talking about today as sustainable community. I lived in a camp life almost all my
life, some form or another, with a little store, and the doctor's office, and the dentist was
all walkable. I did not know what riding a car was, only bus, I remember growing up was
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with the school bus. I used to walk four and a half miles one way to school because if I
missed the bus that was life. And you had no choice, and your parents had gone off to
work. You walked, and you were there in time because you weren't late for school.
So I, I believe there's a lot of things that need to be done, but I think this I can support
with the idea that this is a step in the right direction. Like everything we've done today, I
think we're moving in the right direction. And I thank you, Chair, for bringing these
issues up, for bringing this forward. Is it perfect? Again, nothing's perfect in this world,
but it's a start in the right direction. I believe people looking for alternatives and these
are alternatives. We just went through with the Planning Commission on stacking which
is kind of a little different issue, but still part of what we're talking about. I know a
number of people who live in Wailuku Town that live upstairs of their business, and they
like it. They truly like it. But, like everything else, let's give it a chance. So, Mr. Chair,
I thank you, and I can support your recommendation. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I'll be supporting your
recommendation. I just wanted to provide a few comments. I, I think in Hawaii we have
a different challenge when we talk about parking stalls, and businesses, and so forth.
You know, I recently came back from a conference in the Pacific Northwest, and I drove
over 200 miles to get there, but the vast amount of land out there is incredible that we
don't have that in Hawaii. Land is very valuable, very limited. So when we do put
parking stalls it has to be certainly for a necessity that we do that, because we don't have
the kind of land that Oregon or Washington State has. I mean they have so much land
that they can leave the trees up, they don't have to take them down. You know, but it's
amazing the difference between living in the islands with limited land and, and living,
you know, on a continent with almost unlimited land.
So I think it is a challenge for us in Hawaii no matter what island we live on. That when
we consider provisions for parking or for businesses it is a challenge. What choice do we
make? Do we say, well, no business here? That way we have a little more land left open.
Or do we say, okay, we need a business here for the people, but that requires parking? So
it, it is a challenge for, you know, all of us on this Council and even the Planning
Department to come up with good balances that not only serves the people, but serves our
environment, and serves our islands. So I just wanted to provide those comments.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I will be supporting your
recommendation. You know, we often sit here and wax eloquent about the right kind of
setting for people to live in or what we think is an ideal place for them to be, and yet
there's rooms for many, many different kinds of accommodations for people to live in.
And that might be apartments, that might be duplexes, it might be over a business of
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some kind, because it's convenient for that family, and it enables them to do caregiving,
as well as run their store or whatever it is. Or there's the traditional Ozzie and Harriet
white house with picket fence, which we don't see much anymore. And, you know, I was
fortunate enough to grow up in a plantation home but in a camp, but I had a beautiful
home that my father received as working for the plantation, and we had a big yard, and
coconut trees, and the whole thing. So I think images of plantation camps sometimes are
painted like squalor, and believe me we did not live in squalor. We had a very, very
pretty home. And then, of course, I lived Upcountry, and we also had another nice home
with three acres.
So I mean I know what it is to grow up in the open space. But I also know that living
Upcountry has its challenges because much of the activity on this island happens in
Central Maui and the commuting is very difficult, particularly for people with young
families who have to come up and down the hill two or three times a day to make sure the
children get to sports, or they ride the MEO bus if they can, or whatever it is they do, or
they wind up buying cars so that the teenagers can attend their activities. So, you know,
there's much to be said for alternative kinds of lifestyles at different phases in one's life.
And I think that it's good for us to provide alternatives and, you know, choices for
people. And for those who, you know, cannot afford the choices, well, we're sorry, but at
least we want to make sure they have decent, affordable housing to live in and that's
important also.
So, you know, I don't want to be judgmental about various kinds of living
accommodations. What is really important is not the accommodations. You know a
home is more than a house. It's what goes on in that house that makes a house a home.
You know, I just started reading the biography that Governor Ben Cayetano wrote, and I
haven't gotten very far into it, but I find it very interesting as we talk about this to realize
that he grew up in very, very humble beginnings where his home was attached to
somebody else and because his father had to work very long hours, because he was a
single father, the neighbors in the neighboring units really took care and, you know,
looked over Ben and his brother. And if they had been separated in some house by
themselves I don't know what they would have done. So, you know, we have to be broad
minded. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: After listening to all of the debate I really don't have
anything to, to say other than, you know, I, I thought this was pertaining to off-street
parking and loading and all of a sudden you get residential mixed use and shopping
center as part of the definition. You know, I've gone through various project sites on the
mainland in the past years and what I saw there are a lot of residential mixed use projects,
and the one I can remember, which was in Denver where you had businesses on the
bottom and personal living on the second floor, and on top of that, you know, you had all
of this green solar system. And, you know, they really took advantage as far as trying to
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create a sustainable living quarters for that residential mixed use project, and I liked what
I saw.
But, again, you know, trying to relate this with parking is kind of mind boggling. So I
just thought I'd add that comment regarding, you know, residential mixed use as far as a
project goes. It's a good concept, and I know A&B right now is looking into the
possibility of doing something in Kahului. So I look forward to that particular project.
Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, Members, thank you for all of your comments. And I
think we, we share many perspectives, but the, the real focus is where we want to head
and where we want to steer. So I accept all of your, your comments as part of that
collective direction. And, you know, I, I, I would like to say to Member Medeiros, we
have to, while we we're doing this, not lose sight of the fact that we still do live on, on an
island; and Member Nishiki, I think having to live on an island and having had a lifestyle
that has been really country and rural for the most part it's tough to try and understand
how we're looking toward a future that looks at different kinds of directions and
scenarios. But it's all intended, I think, to really make use of the, the concept of
sustainability because our island needs to become a sustainable place, and whatever it's
going to take to help us to be sustainable on a, on a finite island is what we must do.
And so, I think accepting some of these kinds of directions surely will not just be
accepting anyone else's overlay to an island, but to have our ability to look at the fact that
we are island people, that we incorporate those ideas that are most conducive to our
island state and our island living to make it all sustainable. And I think that's what this
is. And, Member Pontanilla, this is only one component perhaps and what we haven't
done is looked at the other pieces to help it all fit. And if we can bring them all together
and each of you are going to play an important part in creating those pieces, and then if
we can look at it comprehensively and totally, then we might see that we are, in fact,
moving in that direction. So we're about to create those in these times, and I think it's
exciting, and I want to thank you folks for this. So having said that, then all those in
favor of the motion signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: All those opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Let the record show that we have one, two, three, four,
five; five ayes, one no, one excused, and we have Member Pontanilla, a non-voting
Member present.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho' ohalahala.
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NOES: Councilmember Nishiki.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of proposed bill and FILING
of communication.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So thank you, Members, for this meeting. And the meeting is
now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ADJOURN: 4:19 p.m.

APPROVED:

SOL P. KAHO'OHALAHALA, Chair
Planning Committee
pc:min:090601

Transcribed by: Jessica Cahill
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